
 
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
  TUESDAY, JUNE 18, 2013 

7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 PRESENTATION:     ACTIVITY DAY AT FOUNTAIN PARK - NATHAN BURKHOLDER 
 
 PROCLAMATION:    NATIONAL GO SKATEBOARD DAY – JUNE 21st   
 

 
              REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

   
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of the minutes from the June 4, 2013 Regular City Commission Meeting  
 

2. RES. NO. R-95-13 
A Resolution accepting the resignation of Cheryl Burkhardt as a member of the Park Board 

  
 NEW BUSINESS 
 

3. ORD. NO. 9-13 (1st Reading) 
An Ordinance amending Chapter 96 (Trees) of the Piqua Municipal Code 
 

 OLD BUSINESS 
 

4. ORD.NO. 7-13 (2nd Reading) 
An Ordinance to authorize the annexation of contiguous territory owned by the Municipal  
Corporation and the State 

 
5. ORD. NO. 8-13 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance enacting and adopting a supplement to the Code of Ordinances for the City of Piqua 
 

6. RES. NO. R-96-13 (Public Hearing) 
A Resolution accepting for statutory purposes a budget for the calendar year 2014 

 
7. RES. NO. R-97-13 

A Resolution approving the Community Development Block Grant formula allocation program 
application for fiscal year 2013 
 

8. RES. NO. R-98-13 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement to permit the usage of a 
portion of Fountain Park, Hardman Field and Hance Pavilion to the Piqua Fourth of July Association 
 
 



 2

 
 

9. RES. NO. R-99-13 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into the LPA Federal Local-Let Project agreement 
with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the Safe Routes to School (SRTS) 
infrastructure projects 
 

10. RES. NO. R-100-13 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Christy Construction for the 2013 sidewalk ADA Compliance 
Program 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT 
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
OTHER:   Monthly Reports for April 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
a. Economic Development Update – Mr. Bill Murphy 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday June 4, 2013 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Vogt, and Wilson, Trustee Mc Maken, Trustee Hiegel, and Trustee 
Holfinger.  Absent: Martin. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry to excuse Commissioner Martin 
from the June 4, 2013 Piqua City Commission Meeting due to a death in the family. Voice vote, 
Aye; Fess, Vogt, Wilson, and Terry. Nay; None. 
 

JOINT MEETING OF WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TRUSTEE 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Approval of the minutes from the May 7, 2013 Joint Meeting with the Washington Township 
Trustees and the Piqua City Commission 
 
Resolution No. R-82-13 
A Resolution renewing a tax levy in excess of the ten-mill limitation for maintenance and operating 
the Forest Hill Union Cemetery 
 
Trustee Hiegel gave a brief explanation on the need for the tax levy at this time. 
 
Move by Trustee Hiegel, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-82-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Holfinger, McMaken, Hiegel, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, and Fess. Nay: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Trustee Holfinger, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the Joint Meeting   
of the Washington Township Trustees and the Piqua City Commission Meeting at 7:40 P.M.  
Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Wilson, Fess, Martin, and Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PRESENTATION       
I LOVE PIQUA VIDEO AWARD WINNERS 
 
1st Place - Riley Branson 
2nd Place - Elizabeth Ann Butt 
3rd Place - Jared & Justin Younce 
 
Lorna Swisher, Executive Director Mainstreet Piqua came forward and provided a brief outline of 
the requirements for the I Love Piqua Video.  The winning video by Riley Branson was shown, and 
Bill Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director presented an oversize check 
to the three winners.  Mr. Murphy stated that media department of the winner’s school will also 
receive a check. 
 
RECOGNITION 
BIKE TO WORK WEEK IN THE CITY OF PIQUA 
 
Jim Hemmert, Chairperson of the Active Living Committee provided information on the Bike to 
Work Week May 13-17, 2013. Forty-one persons and eleven businesses participated in this event. 
Employees rode their bikes to and from work, or on their lunch hour totaling 740 miles. Chris 
Schmiesing, City Planner read the names of the various Businesses and individuals that took part 
in the Bike to Work Week and presented a Certificate of Appreciation to those present.  



 2

In addition, the winning large business was Miami Valley Steel Services, with eight employees 
who rode 177 miles, and the small business winner was Treon’s Barber and Styling Shop with one 
employee who rode 104 miles. Both businesses were presented with the interactive “Silver Pedal 
Trophy” Award. 
 
In 2015 the City of Piqua will be hosting the Cycling Summit, and at the 2013 Cycle Summit in 
Springfield recently Piqua was presented the “Traveling Handlebars”. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
     Consent Agenda 

 
     Approval of the minutes from the May 21, 2013 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 

 
     RES. NO. R-83-13 
     A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Donald Larger as a City Employee 
 
     Mayor Fess read and presented the Resolution of Appreciation to Donald Larger. 
      
     RES. NO. R-84-13 
     A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Bret Reid as a City Employee 
 
     Mayor Fess read and presented the Resolution of Appreciation to Bret Reid. 
 
    RES. NO. R-85-13 
     A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Steve Cantrell as a City Employee 
 

Mayor Fess read and presented the Resolution of Appreciation to Police Chief Jamison. 
 

Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to approve the Consent  
    Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Fess, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
    unanimously.   

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
    ORD. NO. 7-13 

An Ordinance to authorize the annexation of contiguous territory owned by the Municipal 
Corporation and the State 

 
Chris Schmiesing, City Planner, provided a brief overview of the request for the annexation. Mr. 
Schmiesing stated the City of Piqua and State of Ohio own territory contiguous to the limits of the 
municipal corporation. This ordinance will authorize the filing of an annexation petition to annex City 
of Piqua and State of Ohio properties located near State Route 66 and Hardin Road.  The City 
desires to annex the 40+ acre tract in anticipation of the construction of the new water treatment 
facility slated to begin construction in 2014. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 7-13. 
 
Ordinance No. 7-13 was given a first reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 8-13 
An Ordinance enacting and adopting a supplement to the Code of Ordinances for the City of Piqua 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall explained this is a routine housekeeping procedure that is done once a 
year after American Legal Publishing Corporation reviews and recommends the revision or addition 
of certain sections of the Code of Ordinances which are based on or make reference to the Ohio 
Code. 



 3

 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 8-13. 
 
Ordinance No. 8-13 was given a first reading. 
 

    RES. NO. R- 86-13 
A  Resolution awarding a contract to Pohlkat Inc. in the amount not to exceed $150,000 annually for 
removal and disposal of lime residual from the Lime Lagoon at the Water Plant for 2013-2015 
 
Don Freisthler, Water Plant Superintendent, stated the amounts will vary each year depending on 
the amount of lime sludge we asked them to remove. At the current pricing $31.40 per ton, they will 
be removing 1,500 dry tons of sludge from the old pit and 3,277 from the current lagoon.  Through 
Pohlkat was not the lowest bidder for the three year contract, they were chosen to do the project for 
several reasons as stated by Mr. Freisthler. It was for the reasons stated the City decided to stay 
with Pohlkat, Inc. as they have always hauled the sludge in a timely manner to the satisfaction of 
the City, the farmers, and the site neighbors.  The contract will begin on June 20, 2013 and run 
through December 31, 2015, stated Mr. Freisthler 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-86-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-86-13 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt. and Terry.  Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-86-13 adopted. 

 
    RES. NO. R-87-13 

A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Southeastern Equipment Company, Inc. for the 
purchase of a backhoe for the Public Works Department 
 
Brian Brookhart, Assistant Public Works Director provided information regarding the purchase of the 
new backhoe.  The new backhoe will be used to do base repairs, Parks projects, and assist in the 
operation at the compost facility.  The previous backhoe was traded towards the purchase of a new 
leaf machine. The backhoe will be ordered right away and delivery is expected within 30-90 days, 
stated Mr. Brookhart. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-87-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-87-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-87-13 adopted. 
 

    RES. NO. R-88-13 
A Resolution fixing the time and place for a Public Hearing on the proposed City Tax Budget for 
Miami County for the Calendar Year 2014 and Draft Appropriation Ordinance. 
 
City Manager Gary Huff explained Charter Section 49 requires the submission of the draft of an 
appropriation ordinance based upon the said budget.  This resolution sets the Public Hearing on the 
proposed City Tax Budget for Miami County for the year 2014.  The Public Hearing shall be held at 
the next regular City Commission Meeting on June 18, 2013 at 7:30 P.M. in the Commission 
Chambers at the Municipal Government Complex. 
 
 
  



 4

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-88-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to approve Resolution No. R-
88-13.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Fess.  Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 

    Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-88-13 adopted. 
 
    RES. NO. R-89-13 

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Strand Associates, Inc. for 
the site selection, design, permitting, and construction engineering for a new 1.0 million gallon 
elevated water storage tower 
 
Water Plant Superintendent, Don Freisthler stated currently there are two 250,000 gallon storage 
towers in the central pressure zone. These were built in 1951 and were designed for the needs at 
that time. This was prior to Piqua’s growth and need to develop the three pressure zones. 
 
Kris Ruggles of Strand Associates, Inc. came forward and provided additional information regarding 
the specifications for the new water tower at this time. 
 
There was discussion concerning the number of gallons that would be stored in the water tower, the 
painting/branding that would be done on the new tower, the type of tower that will be installed, and 
the reason for the location. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-89-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-89-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-89-13 adopted. 

 
     RES. NO. R-90-13 

A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of a refuse packer truck for the Sanitation 
Department 
 
Amy Welker, Director of Health & Sanitation explained the Sanitation Department utilizes a fleet of 
trucks to perform the daily functions of the department.  This is a routine replacement of the oldest 
truck in the fleet at this time, which is a 2000 International 4900 truck, and McNeilus packer body 
that has over 100,000 miles on it.  Trucks usually last between twelve and fifteen years.  Bid 
requests were sent out in January of 2013, and eleven competitive bids were received, with Stoops 
Freightliner coming in as the lowest responsible bidder at a cost of $125,586. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-90-13 

 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-90-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, and Vogt.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-90-13 adopted. 

 
    RES. NO. R-91-13 

A Resolution awarding a contract to HD Supply Power Solutions for the purchase of material for the 
Power System 
 
Nick Berger, Assistant Power System Director, stated on July 17, 2012 the Piqua City Commission 
approved Resolution No. R-106-12 which allowed the power system to acquire the services of 
Power System Engineering, Inc. (PSE) to perform an assessment of the transmission line between 



 5

substation 4 & 5. The assessment resulted in the need to replace thirty-two (32) main-line poles.  
On March 5, 2013, the City Commission approved Resolution R-30-13 awarding a contract to 
Bridgewell resources for the purchase of thirty-two steel transmission poles.  On May 7, 2013 the 
City Commission approved Resolution R-71-13 acquiring the services of P & G Power as the 
contractor for the city to replace the thirty-two poles.  On May 17, 2013 the Power System received 
bids from four different vendors to supply the additional material for the pole replacements.  HD 
Supply Power Solutions provided the lowest and best bid and 10% was added for contingencies to 
allow for any unforeseen expenses. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-91-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-91-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry.  Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-91-13 adopted. 
 

    RES. NO. R-92-13  
A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Horton Emergency Vehicles Company for the 
purchase of a Medic for the Fire Department 
 
Fire Chief Mike Rindler provided information regarding the purchase of the new Medic stating the 
Fire Department attempted to save money on a lesser duty chassis/box (Medic 9) in 2007.  But 
unfortunately the lesser duty chassis has not been able to handle the harsh work load for the call 
volume that the Piqua Fire Department experiences. Medic 9 has been out of service for a total of 
31 days in the last 12 months for various mechanical break downs.  Due to the aging fleet they are 
experiencing an increase in vehicle maintenance. With the purchase of this medic it will help to 
reduce the vehicle maintenance expenditures for 2013, stated Chief Rindler. 
 
Several questions were raised concerning the trade-in value, and the reason for the large number of 
breakdowns.  Chief Rindler answered all questions. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-92-13 

 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-92-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-92-13 adopted. 
 

    RES. NO. R-93-13  
A Resolution authorizing the Law Director to petition the Board of County Commissioners of Miami 
County, Ohio for a change in the boundary lines of Washington Township 
 
Chris Schmiesing, City Planner explained this resolution will authorize the filing of a petition to 
change the boundaries of Washington Township upon annexation of the City of Piqua and State of 
Ohio properties located near State Route 66 and Hardin Road.  The annexation agreement 
executed between the City of Piqua and Washington Township requires those areas of Washington 
Township annexed into the municipal corporation limits to be excluded from the township 
boundaries, and the petition must be filed with the Miami County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-93-13 

 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-93-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Fess.  Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-93-13 adopted 



 6

 
    RES. NO. R-94-13  

A Resolution authorizing the execution of a loan agreement with Vestco, Ltd, in the amount of 
$30,00 William Lutz, Development Program Manager explained in 2009 the City of Piqua received a 
$90,000 grant from the United State Department of Agricultural to establish a revolving loan fund for 
economic development purposes. The Development Department received a request from Vestco, 
Ltd, a small business that provides home based skilled and non-skilled home health care for clients.  
The business has two existing locations in Montgomery County and is looking to open a new office 
in the northern Miami Valley area and have chosen Piqua.  The company has a contract to 
purchase the property located at 423 N. Wayne Street, and funds from this loan will be used to 
rehabilitate the property in order to meet the needs of the business. The business pledges to create 
two jobs, which is a requirement for the loan program, stated Mr. Lutz.  The loan will be for seven 
years at a three percent interest rate and will be secured by a mortgage on the property. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-94-13 

 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-94-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-94-13 adopted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide           
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions 
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office. 

      
    Jim Hemmert, Boone Street, Chairperson of the Active Living Committee came forward providing 
     information on various events that will be coming up. They include: Pack the Path; the Bike Mob  
     Ride held the second Saturday of every month; Mainstreet Piqua Cash Mob; and on Oct, 19th, the  
    Groovy Gourd Bike Ride. 
 

Mayor Fess stated she was pleased to see the wonderful group of citizens representing Piqua at 
the Cycling Summit in Springfield recently. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Huff announced Mainstreet Piqua will be hosting the Brown Bag Lunch Series 
beginning Thursday June 6, June 13, June 20, and June 27, 2013 in front of the Municipal 
Government Complex and invited citizens to come and enjoy the food and entertainment from 11:45 
– 1:00 p.m. 
 
City Manager Huff announced the Site Technical Assistance for Municipal Projects Team (STAMP)   
for the National Brownfield Association will be in Piqua on June 5th and 6th to assess the local 
Brownfield areas. 
 
City Manager Huff announced the City Commission will hold a Work Session on Thursday June 13, 
at 7:30 P.M. 

   
     Commissioners Comment 
     
     Commissioner Wilson congratulated all of the city employees on their years of service to City of 
     Piqua and the citizens.  Commissioner Wilson also congratulated the three I Love Piqua Video 
     Winners, further stating he is glad to see the young people getting involved with the community. 
    
     Commissioner Wilson announced the Bike Mob will take place on Saturday, June 8th at 10:30 A.M 
     meeting at Lock 9 Park. 



 7

 
     Commissioner Terry congratulated the city employees on their retirement, and also congratulated 
     the I Love Piqua Video winners.  
 
     Commissioner Terry congratulated Robby Bloom on obtaining his Eagle Scout Award recently.   

     Mayor Fess stated Robby Bloom did an outstanding job on the Heritage Green Park for his     
     Eagle Scout project. 
 
     Commissioner Vogt congratulated all of the city employees on their retirement. 

     Commissioner Vogt thanked all who expressed their condolences in the passing of his wife Patty, 
     further stating Piqua is a great place to live. 
 
     Mayor Fess stated the BMX Park on Covington Avenue will be opening soon.  There are a lot of  
     exciting things happening in the City of Piqua, and encouraged citizens to participate. 
 
     Mayor Fess asked that citizens keep Commissioner Vogt and Commissioner Martin in their  
     thoughts and prayers in the loss of their loved ones. 
  

  Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the Regular  
     Piqua City Commission Meeting at 8:45 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Wilson, Fess, and  
     Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
                  
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                         RESOLUTION NO. R-95-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RESIGNATION  
                          OF CHERYL BURKHARDT AS A MEMBER 

      OF THE PARK BOARD 
 

 
WHEREAS, Cheryl Burkhardt was appointed to the Park Board on March 15, 

2011 by Resolution No. R-43-11; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cheryl Burkhardt resigned on June 4, 2013 from the Park Board. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby accepts the resignation of Cheryl 
Burkhardt as a member of the Park Board. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



ORDINANCE NO. 9-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 96  
(TREES) OF THE PIQUA MUNICIPAL CODE  

 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Municipal Code has had laws and procedures 

dealing with planting and the maintenance of trees within the right of way; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City has redefined new standards consistent with the best 

practices of Arboriculture; and    
 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua will enforce these practices to continue to enrich 

the City’s urban forest; and   
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments will renew and advance this ordinance 

into a contemporary document to ensure a sustained partnership with the City and its 
future tree canopy.  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Piqua City Commission, a 

majority of its members concurring that: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the City of Piqua hereby amends Chapter 96 Trees of the Piqua 
Municipal Code as set forth below: (added language is indicated by the underline) 
 

§ 90.01 DEFINITIONS. 

For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply, unless the context 
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.  

     For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply, unless the 
context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning: 

     ARBORIST.  A person qualified in the planting, maintenance, protection, control and 
removal of trees. 

     PUBLIC AREA.  Parks, playgrounds, or other property owned, leased, or controlled 
by the city and street, alley, sidewalk, or other public rights-of-way. 

     SHRUB.  A low, usually several-stemmed, woody plant. 

     TREE.  A woody perennial plant having a single, usually elongated main stem 
generally with few or no branches on its lower part. 

      TREE COMMITTEE.  The committee set up by the City Commission and whose 
organization is described in Ordinance No. 11-76 and in §§ 32.075 through 32.077 of 
this code. 



     TREE LAWN.  That part of the roadway right-of-way laying between the    property 
line and that portion of the roadway used for vehicular traffic. 

     TREE TOPPING.  The removal and/or disfigurement of a tree’s normal canopy as a 
result of cutting back large limbs within the tree’s crown. 

§ 96.02 ENFORCING AUTHORITY. 

     (A)     The City Engineer or his or her duly authorized representative shall be 
charged with enforcement of this chapter. 

     (B)     An arborist shall be retained by the city to serve as an advisor to the City 
Engineer concerning problems related to tree selection and care, diseases of trees, tree 
adaptability and other related problems. 

     (C)     The Tree Committee shall be advised of all actions concerning trees in a 
monthly report and shall review and act upon all recommendations presented by the 
City Engineer concerning tree removal or special planting programs. 

§ 96.03  PLANTING TREES WITHIN CITY. 

     (A)     No permits are required to plant trees in accordance with this chapter, 
however, no trees shall be planted within any public right-of-way without written  
permission from the City Engineer.   

     (B)     All trees and shrubs hereafter planted in any public area in the city shall 
conform as to species and to the street tree plan designated Exhibit A, which is made 
part of this chapter and copies of which are on file in the offices of the City Clerk and the 
City Engineer. 

(C)     (1)  It shall be unlawful to plant within the city the trees listed in Exhibit A, Part 
2, Section D; “Recommended Trees for Planting in the City” a copy of which is on file at 
the municipal offices, without the written approval of the City Engineer. 

               (2)     It shall be unlawful to plant within the city the trees listed in § 91.37 

§ 96.04  REMOVAL. 

     (A)     The City Engineer, or his or her duly authorized representative, may cause to 
be trimmed or pruned any trees, shrubs, plants or vegetation in a tree lawn or public 
area. 

     (B)     The City Engineer, after approval by the Tree Committee, may cause to be  
removed any trees, shrubs, plants or vegetation in a tree lawn or public area. 

     (C)     The property owner is responsible for the maintenance and care of trees, 
shrubs, plants or vegetation on the tree lawn abutting the property. 



     (D)     The failure to comply with division (C) above, after 30-days notice by the city, 
shall be deemed a violation of this chapter. 

     (E)     All trees shall be removed to a depth of four inches below existing ground. 

     (F)     All trees, shrubs, plants or vegetative plantings located or to be located in any 
public area hereafter planted, trimmed, or removed, shall conform to the City of Piqua’s 
Standards of Practice, hereby adopted by reference, and may from time to time be 
revised by the Tree Committee as accepted plantings and practices change;  current 
copies of which are on file in the offices of the City Clerk and the City Engineer. 

§ 96.05  DANGEROUS TREES. 

     (A)     Any trees, shrubs, plants or vegetation growing in a public area or in private 
property, which are endangering, or which in any way may endanger, the security or 
usefulness of any public street, sidewalk or utility, as determined by the City Engineer, 
are declared to be a public nuisance and the city may remove or trim, or may require 
the property owner to remove or trim, the trees, shrubs, plants or vegetation.  

     (B)     Failure to remedy the danger after 30-days notice by the city shall be deemed 
a violation of this chapter and the City Engineer, with approval of the Tree Committee, 
may remove or trim the trees, shrubs, plants or vegetation and assess the costs against 
the property. 

§ 96.06  APPEALS. 

     (A)     Appeals from orders made hereunder may be made by filing written notice 
thereof with the Tree Committee. The appeal request will be sent to the City Engineer. 

     (B)     The Tree Committee shall review the appeal and hear evidence from the 
property owner and the city and render a decision within thirty (30) days of the hearing. 

     (C)     If either side is not satisfied with the decision of the Tree Committee, they may 
appeal in writing to the City Commission, who shall hear evidence and render a 
decision. 

§ 96.07  DAMAGE TO TREES. 

     It shall be a violation of this chapter to do any of the following. 

     (A)     Abuse, destroy, top or mutilate any tree, shrub or plant in a public area. 

     (B)     Attach or place any rope or wire (other than one used to support a young or 
broken tree), sign, poster, handbill or other things to or on any tree growing in a public 
area. 

     (C)     Cause or permit any wire charged with electricity to come in contact with any 
tree in a public area. 



     (D)     Allow any gaseous, liquid or solid substance which is harmful to trees to come 
in contact with their roots or leaves. 

SECTION 2.  All other sections of Chapter 96 of the Piqua Municipal Code not 
amended herein shall remain in effect as is. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
    
         
             
       _______________________________ 

       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 

 

 
 



 

Item # 3
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
June 18, 2013  

REPORT TITLE 
(Should match resolution/ordinance 

title) 
An Ordinance amending Chapter 96 Trees of the Piqua Municipal Code 

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Bob Graeser, Project Manager  

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

The original tree ordinance was passed in 1978 and has become outdated and is in 
need of updates.  The amendments to the ordinance are as a result of working with 
the Tree Committee and reflect implementing the best standards of Arboriculture 
practice within the public right-of-way and in public places. 

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $0  

Expenditure $:  $0 

Source of Funds:  

Narrative  There will be no financial impact to change the ordinance.   
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 

1. Approve the ordinance to amend Chapter 96 Trees, as submitted. 

2. Do not approve the ordinance and keep the current Tree Ordinance in 
effect. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
This has no time line restraints.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the ordinance to allow for best practice standards to be implemented to 
better control unwanted trees within the right-of-ways and public areas.  

ATTACHMENTS  Exhibit A 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

(Part 1) 
 

CITY OF PIQUA, OHIO 
STANDARDS OF PRACTICE 

 
Planting, Maintenance, Protection, Control and Removal of Trees  

 
I. POLICY 

A. The Standards of Practice shall be adhered to at all times, but may be 
amended by the City Engineer with the approval of the Tree Committee at 
anytime that experience, new research, or laws indicate, or whenever 
circumstances make it advisable. 

B. The City shall cooperate with the public and property owners. 

C. The City list of recommended trees for planting shall be used as a guide and 
can be changed, deleted from, or added to as new technology and 
information becomes available or as situations change.  Changes shall be 
approved by the Tree Committee.  

II. PLANTING 

A. Size 

1. Trees shall conform to the American Association of Nurseryman 
Standards unless otherwise specified herein or by the City. 

2. Medium and large tree species shall be at least 1¼” inches in 
diameter, six (6) inches above ground level, and be at least eight (8) 
feet in height when planted. 

3. Small tree species shall be at least five (5) feet in height and have six 
(6) or more branches. 

B. Grade 

1. All trees shall have straight trunks, well-developed leaders and tops, 
and good root characteristics. 

2. All trees shall be free of insects, disease, mechanical injury, and other 
objectionalble features. 

C. Location and Spacing 



1. No small size tree as defined in Exhibit A (Part  2) Section VI   (A) shall 
be planted in a tree lawn less than four (4) feet in width, unless the City 
Engineer so authorizes.  

2. No medium size tree shall as defined in Exhibit A (Part 2) Section VI  

( B) be planted in a tree lawn less than  six (6) feet in width nor within 
twenty (20) feet of an overhead utility wire.  

3. No large size tree as defined in Exhibit  A (Part 2) Section VI (C)  shall 
be planted in a tree lawn less than eight (8) feet in width nor within 
twenty (20) feet of an overhead utility wire. 

4. In tree lawns less than four (4) feet in width or where overhead lines, 
utilities or building setbacks are special problems, the site and species 
shall be subject to the City Engineer’s  approval. 

5. No trees shall be planted within thirty (30) feet of a stop sign or 
intersection on a local street, within fifty (50) feet of a stop sign or 
intersection on a collector or arterial street, within fifteen (15) feet of an 
alley, or within ten (10) feet of a utility pole, pedestal, fire hydrant, or 
underground utility conduit; said distances being as measured from the 
nearest edge of the tree to the object referenced. 

6. Generally, large trees shall be planted with a minimum separation of 
forty (40) feet center to center, medium trees a minimum separation of 
thirty (30) feet on center and small trees a minimum separation of 
twenty (20) feet on center unless local conditions or tree characteristics 
dictate otherwise, as determined by the City Engineer  

7. Tree planting in areas where the street and sidewalk are unimproved 
shall be located so that improvements shall not require the removal of 
or result in the destruction of the tree. 

8. Tree plantings shall be more or less centered in the available tree lawn 
width, with the species selected and situated so that the nearest edge 
of the matured tree will not be nearer than two (2) feet to the back of 
the curb line, nearest edge of pavement, or the public sidewalk. 

D. Methods of Planting and Support 

1. Roots of bare-rooted trees shall be protected against drying out. 

2. All coniferous trees shall be balled and burlapped when moved.  They 
shall be protected against drying out or freezing. 

3. Pits dug for planting shall be twelve (12) inches larger than the 
diameter of the root system ball of soil. 



4. Consideration shall be given to artificial drainage in poorly drained soil. 

5. Acceptable soil mixture shall be used for backfilling and the entire area 
saturated with water after planting. 

6. Trees shall be suitably guyed and wrapped according to accepted 
arboricultural practices.  Guys shall not be a hinderance to public 
safety.   

III. EARLY MAINTENANCE 

A. A thorough watering each five (5) to ten (10) days depending on conditions 
should be provided for each tree. 

B. Nutrients should be available after growth starts. 

C. Frequent and thorough inspections should be made for disease and insects.  
Controls used for disease or insects should be safe and effective. 

D. Pruning 

1. Pruning shall be practiced as necessary to assure sturdy crotch 
development. 

2. Tree heads shall be raised as growth characteristics dictate.  Lower 
branches should eventually be removed to a height of at least seven 
(7) feet unless lower branches can be justified. 

IV. GENERAL MAINTENANCE 

A. Pruning and Removal 

1. Topping or dehorning of other trees is not permitted without written 
consent of the City Engineer. 

2. All trees over the public right-of-way shall be pruned to maintain a 
minimum vertical clearance of twenty (20) feet from the roadway 
surface, and a minimum vertical clearance of ten (10) feet from the 
public sidewalk surface. Pruning cuts shall be made with a saw or 
pruner and only at nodes or crotches.  No stubs shall be left.  No spurs 
or climbing irons shall be used. 

3. All dead, crossed, or rubbing branches shall be removed. 

4. Tools used on trees suspected of being infected with contagious 
disease shall be disinfected after each cut and between trees. 

5. Stumps of all trees removed in the public area shall be removed at 
least four inches below ground level. 



V. SPRAYING 

A. Precautions shall be taken to protect and warn the public that spraying is 
being done. 

B. Spraying shall be done only for control of specific diseases or insects and 
shall conform to State and Federal regulations. 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
(Part 2) 

 
VI. RECOMMENDED TREES FOR PLANTING IN CITY 

 
A. Small trees less than  25 feet in height.  

 
1. Hedge Maple (Acer campestre) – usually pest free; needs little 

maintenance; excellent in dry locations; tolerates exhaust fumes. 
 

2. Trident Maple (Acer buergerianum) – readily transplanted; drought 
resistant. 

 
3. Tatarian Maple (Acer tataricum) – good, small tree for street use; 

tolerates city conditions; slow growing; drought tolerant. 
 

4. Lavelle Hawthorn (Crataegus lavallei) – no major pest problems; can 
endure soot and grime; adaptable to soil conditions. 
 

5. Washington Hawthorn (Crataegus phaenopyrum) – easily 
transplanted; fairly free of pests; best hawthorn for city. 
 

6. Winter King Hawthorn (Crataegus virdis) – good landscape tree; used 
in medium loam or heavy soils. 
 

7. Pauls Scarlet Hawthorn (Crataegus oxycantha pauli) – needs spray to 
control aphids and fire blight. 

 
 

8. American Hornbeam (Carpinus caroliniana) – slow growth rate; deep 
rooted; difficult to transplant; grows well in shade. 

 
9. Golden-rain Tree (Koelreuteria paniculata) – week wooded; tolerates 

polluted air; withstands heat and drought. 
        



10. Callery Pear (Pyrus calleryana) – low maintenance; drought resistant; 
moderate growth rate. 

 
11. Autumn Brilliance Serviceberry (Amelanchier grandiflora). 

 
12. Japanese Tree Lilac (Syringa reticulata). 

 
13. Thornless Hawthorn (Crataegus crusgalli var. inermis). 

 
14. Flowering Crabapple ( Malus )– hardy; scab resistant; adapts to soil.  

The following crabapple trees are resistant to apple scab and fire 
blight: 

 
American Beauty Coral Burst Golden Hornet  
Kilbele Liset Mary Potter 
Red Jewel Red Splendor Royal Ruby 
 White Angel Winter Gold 
Zumi Calocarpa  

 
 

B. Medium trees between 25 and 60 feet in height and suitable for tree lawns 
over 4 feet in width and for planting more than 20 feet from utility wires. 

 
1. Norway Maple (Acer platanoides) – good street tree; shallow root 

system; hard to grow grass under. 
 

2. Columnar Maple (Acer platanoides columnare) – tolerates city 
conditions; shallow root system; few serious diseases or insect pests. 
 

3. Erect Norway Maple (Acer platanoides erectum) – needs little care; 
withstands city conditions; few serious diseases or pests. 
 

 
4. Callery Pear (Pyrus calleryana) – low maintenance; drought resistant; 

moderate growth rate. 
 

5. Ruby Horsechestnut (Carpinus betulus) – slow growing; resistant to 
pests and diseases; rarely needs pruned. 

 
6. European Hornbeam (Carpinus betulus) – slow growing; resistant to 

pests and diseases; rarely needs pruned. 
 

7. Yellowwood (Cladrastis lutea) – tolerates almost any soil; deep rooted; 
tolerates drought; bleeds profusely so trim in early summer. 
 

 



8. Amur Cork Tree (Phellodendron amurense) – pest free; drought 
resistant; low maintenance; good street tree. 

 
9. Columnar Sargent Cherry (Prunus sargentii columnare) – hardiest of 

all cherries; low maintenance. 
 

10. Willow Oak (Quercus phellos) – good, clean tree; tolerates moist soil; 
requires acid soil; shallow rooted. 

 
11. Japanese Pagoda Tree or Chinese Scholar Tree (Sophora japonico) – 

tolerates dry soil; withstands city conditions; requires ample room. 
 

12. Crimean Linden (Tilia euchlora) – very hardy; moderate growth rate. 
 

13. Red Maple (Acer rubrum) – good street tree; withstands moist soils; 
good in parks. 

 
14. Winter King Hawthorn (Crataegus viridis). 

 
 
C. Large trees over 60 feet tall when mature in height. These trees should have 

a planting width of 8 feet or more and should not be planted with wires 
overhead. 

 
1. Ginkgo (Ginkgo biloba) – no pests; slow growing; thrives under city 

conditions; plant male trees only.. 
 

2. Red Oak (Quercus borealis) – withstands city conditions; needs plenty 
of room. 
 

3. Pin Oak (Quercus palustris) – fast growing; transplants easily; requires 
regular pruning; needs acid soil. 
 

4. Pyramidal English Oak (Quercus robur fastigata) – free from serious 
pest problems; tolerates adverse soil conditions; fast growing. 
 

5. Littleleaf Linden (Tilia cordata) – does well in city; low maintenance; 
cold tolerant; few diseases or insect pests. 
 

6. Silver Linden (Tilia tomentosa) – withstands heat and drought; requires 
ample space; will not do well in dusty or sooty air. 

 
7. Zelkova (Zelkova serrata) – tolerates drought; resists dutch elm 

disease; used as elm substitute. 
 

8. Autumn Blaze Maple (Acer freemanii). 



 
9. Swamp White Oak (Quercus Sp.). 

 
10. Northern Red Oak (Quercus rubra). 

 
 
 

D. Undesirable trees for planting in public areas for reasons including structural 
problems, insect infestation, disease susceptibility, early leaf drop, fruit litter, 
root problems for utilities, susceptible to wind damage. 

 
Box elder 
(Acer negundo)  
 
 

Silver Maple 
( Acer 
saccharinum)  

Horsechestnut 
(Aseculus 
hippocastanum) 

Catalpa 
(Catalpa 
speciosa) 
 

Tulip Tree 
Lirodendon 
Tulipfera)  

Apple 

 
Mulberry 
(Morus)  
 

 
Poplars 
(Poplulus) 

 
Black Locust 
(Robinia)  

Willows 
(Salix)  

 
 

Siberian Elm 
(Ulmus pumila)  
 

 
Tree-of-Heaven 
(Ailanthus 
altissima)  
 

 
Buckeye 
(Aesculus)  

 
Birch 
(Betula)  
 
 

Fruit Trees Maidenhair Tree  
(Ginkgo biloba  
Female )  
 

Black Walnut 
(Jugians nigra)  

Nut Trees 
 

Conifers Ash Trees 
(Fraxinus) 

   
 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 7-13 
AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE ANNEXATION OF CONTIGUOUS 
TERRITORY OWNED BY THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION AND THE 
STATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua and State of Ohio own territory 

contiguous to the limits of the municipal corporation, as described by Exhibit 
‘A’ and shown in Exhibit ‘B’, hereinafter referred to as the territory; and,  

WHEREAS, the city of Piqua desires to annex the territory in 
anticipation of the construction of a new water treatment facility; and 

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code §§ 709.13 through 709.21 provide the 
process for the annexation of municipal and state territory contiguous to the 
municipal corporation; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City 
of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 

SEC. 1: Pursuant to the process of annexation provided for by 
Ohio Revised Code §§ 709.13 through 709.21, this Commission hereby 
authorizes the annexation of the subject property. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall execute the necessary 
annexation petition document. 

SEC. 3: The Law Director shall prosecute the proceedings 
necessary to effect the annexation. 

SEC. 4:   This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law 

        
   1st Reading 6-4-2013 
            

_____________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
PASSED:   _______________________   
 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                  CLERK OF COMMISSION



 

Item # 5 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE June 4, 2013 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE ANNEXATION OF 
CONTIGUOUS TERRITORY OWNED BY THE MUNICIPAL 
CORPORATION AND THE STATE 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

Utilities Department Director  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

This item is in accordance with the Oho Revised Code annexation requirements 
for the annexation of municipally and state owned territory.  Adoption of this 
Ordinance will authorize the filing of an annexation petition to annex City of 
Piqua and State of Ohio properties located near State Route 66 and Hardin 
Road.   

The subject properties owned by the City of Piqua will be the site of a new 
Water Treatment Plan slated to begin construction in 2014.  They State of Ohio 
property included in this annexation represents that portion of the Johnston 
Farm tract that occupies a portion the Hardin Road and State Route 66 highway 
easement area.  The Johnston Farm tract, less that portion in the roadway 
easement area, was previously annexed into the municipal corporation limits.   

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  400 +/- 

Source of Funds: Utilities Fund 

Narrative:  There are filing fees and recording fees that will need to be 
satisfied to process and finalize this request. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the ordinance to authorize the proposed annexation. 

2. Defeat the ordinance to deny the proposed annexation. 



PROJECT TIMELINE See attached project schedule 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Authorize the proposed annexation. 

ATTACHMENTS Ordinance (including legal description and map exhibits); Project Schedule 

 



Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

45.503 ACRES 
 
Situated in the Township of Washington, County of Miami, State of Ohio; also being a part of Section 1, 
Town 8, Range 5 East and a part of Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East and a part of Section 6, Town 6, 
Range 6 East; also being those lands as conveyed to City of Piqua as described in Official Record 225 
Page 484 and Official Record 232 Pages 795 through 818 and a tract of land owned by the City of Piqua 
(the former Piqua Hydraulic Feeder Canal) and a portion of those lands within the rights-of-way of State 
Route 66 (right-of-way varies) and Hardin Road No. 110 (60’ right-of-way) and Hardin Road Alternate 
(60’ right-of-way) and a portion of those lands as conveyed to State of Ohio as described in Deed Book 
426 Page 70; being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the northeast corner of Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East, said point also being along the 
southerly line of Lot 1 of Northwood Hills Subdivision Section One as recorded in Plat Book 10 Page 13, 
said point also being along the northerly line of a 2.6768 acre tract as conveyed to Carl D. & Michele L. 
Hutcherson as described in Official Record 45 Page 453; thence, 
 
Along the division line between Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East and Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East, 
also being along the southerly lines of said Lot 1 and then along the southerly line of Lot 21 and then 
along a portion of the southerly line of Lot 22 of Northwood Hills Subdivision Section 2 as recorded in 
Plat Book 10 Page 95, also being along a portion of the northerly line of said 2.6768 acre tract, North 89º 
40’ 39” West for a distance of 367.17’ to a point, said point being the northwesterly corner of said 2.6768 
acre tract, said point also being the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, and from said beginning point 
running thence, 
 
Along the westerly line of said 2.6768 acre tract, South 0° 03' 26"East, for a distance of 223.26' to the 
southwesterly corner of said 2.6768 acre tract; thence, 
 
Along the southerly line of said 2.6768 acre tract, North 89° 56' 34"East, for a distance of 471.26' to a 
point along the centerline of Hardin Road No. 110 (60’ right-of-way); thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road No. 110, North 30° 02' 53"East, for a distance of 74.47' to a point; 
thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road No. 110, North 14° 34' 50"East, for a distance of 160.40' to a point 
along the northerly line of Section 6, Township 6, Range 6 East; thence, 
 
Along the northerly line of said Section 6, South 89° 40' 39"East, for a distance of 30.95' to a point 
along the easterly line of Hardin Road No. 110, said point also being along the division line between the 
City of Piqua and Washington Township; thence the following 8 courses along the easterly right-of-way 
line of Hardin Road No. 110 and the division line between the City of Piqua and Washington Township, 
 
South 14° 34' 50"West, for a distance of 172.10' to a point; thence, 
 
South 30° 02' 53"West, for a distance of 828.21' to a point; thence, 
 
South 33° 23' 13"West, for a distance of 310.44' to a point; thence, 
 
South 31° 28' 33"West, for a distance of 167.15' to a point; thence, 
 
South 18° 18' 04"West, for a distance of 313.51' to a point; thence, 
 



Exhibit ‘A’ 
 
Along a curve to the left, said curve being non-tangent to the previous course, said curve having a radius 
of 3407.75’, an arc length of 213.12’, a central angle of 3º 35’ 00”, and a chord that beard South 16º 
30’ 34” West for a distance of 213.09’ to a point; thence, 
 
South 15° 54' 28"East, for a distance of 48.21' to a point; thence, 
 
South 10° 18' 16"West, for a distance of 207.00' to a point along the northerly right-of-way line of State 
Route No. 66 (right-of-way varies) and along the division line between the City of Piqua and Washington 
Township; thence, 
 
Along the northerly right-of-way line of State Route No. 66, also being along the division line between 
the City of Piqua and Washington Township, South 17° 21' 48"East, for a distance of 473.81' to a point; 
thence, 
 
Along the same, South 24° 38' 18"East, for a distance of 111.95' to a point along a southerly line of a 
162.823 acre tract as conveyed to State of Ohio as described in Deed Book 426 Page 70; thence, 
 
Along a portion of a southerly line of said 162.823 acre tract and then along the extension of said 
southerly line, South 65° 28' 57"West, for a distance of 90.00' to a point along the centerline of State 
Route No. 66; thence, 
 
Along the centerline of State Route No. 66, also being along the division line between the City of Piqua 
and Washington Township starting at a distance of 549.67’ from the beginning of this course, North 24° 
38' 18"West, for a distance of 2243.10' to a point of curvature; thence, 
 
Along the centerline of State Route No. 66, also being along the division line between the City of Piqua 
and Washington Township, following a curve to the left having a radius of 5729.58’, an arc length of 
789.87, a central angle of 7º 53’ 55”, and a chord that bears North 28º 35’ 16” West for a distance of 
789.24’ to a point at the intersection of the centerlines of State Route No. 66 and Hardin Road Alternate; 
thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road Alternate, South 54° 09' 29"East, for a distance of 444.05' to a 
point; thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road Alternate, South 54° 11' 39"East, for a distance of 289.80' to a 
point, said point being the southeasterly corner of a 1.026 acre tract as conveyed to Warren O. Price, Jr. & 
Marilyn J. Price, Trustees as described in Deed Book 729 Page 233; thence, 
 
Along the easterly line of said 1.026 acre tract, North 1° 09' 46"West, for a distance of 334.79' to a point 
along the southerly line of a 25.078 acre tract as conveyed to John M. & Deborah Owsiniany as described 
in Official Record 284 Page 791, said point also being along the division line between Section 1, Town 8, 
Range 5 East and Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East; thence, 
 
Along a portion of the southerly line of said 25.0783 acre tract and then along a portion of the southerly 
line of Lot 22 of Northwood Hills Subdivision Section 2, also being along the division line between 
Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East and Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East, South 89° 40' 39"East, for a 
distance of 937.26' to the point of beginning containing 45.503 acres of land, more or less, of which 
44.881 acres is in Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East, 0.549 acres is in Section 6, Town 6, Range 6 East, 
and 0.073 acres is in Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East; as determined by Michael L. Keller, Professional 
Surveyor, Ohio License No. 7978, based on a survey performed by Kleingers & Associates in June, 2011 



Exhibit ‘A’ 
 
and September, 2012, as filed in Miami County Recorder’s Record of Plats Volume _______ Page 
_______. 
 
Basis of bearings for the above-described courses is the Ohio State Plane Coordinate System, Ohio South 
Zone (NAD83-2007) as determined by a VRS-GPS survey utilizing CORS station “SIDN” as maintained 
by the Ohio Department of Transportation and station “MIA 099”. 
 
Iron pins set are 5/8” diameter rebar, 30” in length, with plastic identifier caps stamped “Kleingers & 
Assoc”. 
 
Subject to any easements, restrictions, covenants, ordinances, or agreements of record. 
 
Legal description prepared by Michael L. Keller, Professional Surveyor, Ohio License No. 7978 



E
xh

ib
it 

‘B
’ 

 

 







                                            ORDINANCE NO. 8-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING A 
SUPPLEMENT TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
                  FOR THE CITY OF PIQUA 

 
WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, Ohio, has  

completed the 2012 supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Piqua, 
which supplement contains all ordinances of a general and permanent nature 
enacted since the prior supplement to the Code of Ordinances of this City of Piqua; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation has recommended the 
revision or addition of certain sections of the Code of Ordinances which are based on 
or make reference to the Ohio Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Piqua City Commission to accept these 
updated sections in accordance with the changes of the law of the State of Ohio; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to provide for the usual daily operation of the City 
of Piqua and for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and 
general welfare of the City of Piqua that this ordinance take effect at an early date. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 
 SEC 1:  That the 2012 supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Piqua as submitted by American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, 
Ohio, is hereby adopted by reference as is set out in its entirety. 
 
 SEC. 2: Such supplement shall be deemed published as of the day of 
its adoption and approval by the Piqua City Commission and the Clerk of 
Commission is hereby authorized and ordered to insert such supplement into the 
copy of the Code of Ordinances kept on file in the Office of the Clerk of Commission. 
 

SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
          

            ________________________ 
LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

1st Reading 6-4-2013 
 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



PUBLIC HEARING 
RESOLUTION NO. R-96-13  

 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FOR STATUTORY 
PURPOSES A BUDGET FOR THE 

CALENDAR YEAR 2014 
 
 

WHEREAS, Section 5705.28 of the Revised Code requires that this 
Commission adopt a tax budget for the next succeeding fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said tax budget, identified as the “2014 County Tax Budget” and 
incorporated by reference herein, has been presented to this Commission; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The 2014 County Tax Budget for the City of Piqua, Ohio is 
hereby accepted as current for all statutory purposes; 

  
SEC. 2: Pursuant to Charter Section 49, receipt of the 2014 draft 

appropriation ordinance is hereby acknowledged; 
 

 SEC. 3: The Clerk of this Commission is hereby authorized and directed 
to certify a true copy of this Resolution and of the 2014 County Tax Budget to the 
Miami County Budget Commission; 

 
 SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 

      ____________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
   
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 6
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 18, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Resolution Accepting for Statutory Purposes a Budget for the Calendar Year 
2014. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Asst. City Manager & Finance Director 
Department:  Finance 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
We are required to file and approved Resolution and County Tax Budget with 
our Miami County Budget Commission on or before July 20, 2013. We must 
first have the Resolution approved by our City Commission with advertising 
and public hearing being properly conducted. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:   
Expenditure $:   
Source of Funds: Annual Budget 
Narrative:  See attached letter for detail. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approved Resolution as proposed. 
2. Approve Resolution with changes being made to the amounts proposed. 
3. Reject Resolution and advise staff of how to proceed. 
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
Need to file approved Resolution with Miami County by July 20, 2013 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approve Resolution as proposed. 

ATTACHMENTS  1.Tax Budget dated June 13, 2013. 
2.Draft Ordinance to make Appropriations for The City of Piqua for the 
calendar year 2014 

 























 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-97-13 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
FORMULA ALLOCATION PROGRAM APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is a unit of local government that possesses the 
legal authority to apply for Small Cities Community Development Block Grant funds 
available from the Ohio Department of Development, under the Federal Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has housing and community development needs 
that can be improved and alleviated with this assistance; and,  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, a majority of all members elected thereto concurring that: 
 

SEC. 1:  The Fiscal Year 2013 Formula Allocation Program 
application is hereby approved and the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed 
to submit the City’s program application to the Ohio Department of Development, 
including all understandings and assurances therein. 
 

SEC. 2:  The City Manager is authorized to be the designate agent of 
the program in connection with the application and is authorized to execute all 
agreements in conjunction with the Fiscal Year 2013 Program. 
 

SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
             
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
  REBECCA J. COOL 
  CLERK OF COMMISSION  



 

Item #7 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 18, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Approving the Community Development Block Grant Formula Allocation 
Program For Fiscal Year 2013 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department: Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X  Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager    Asst. City Manager/Finance 
   Asst. City Manager/Development    Law Director 
   Department Director;     Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Each year, the City of Piqua receives an allocation from the Ohio Development 
Services Agency to implement local activities through the Community 
Development Block Grant program.  The allocation for 2013 is $75,000, which 
due to federal budget cuts is considerably less than the $95,000 the city 
received in 2012. 
 
Projects were solicited from city staff and it was agreed that the project that 
would be proposed for funding is the repaving of West High Street between 
Downing Street and College Avenue.  This project is estimated to $72,000, in 
which the grant will pay for $60,000 of the amount.  The remaining dollars will 
be paid for by the City and the additional $15,000 in grant dollars goes 
towards administrative and fair housing costs, as required by the State of Ohio. 
 
A public hearing on this project was held on June 13, 2013. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $75,000 
Expenditure $:  $0 
Source of Funds:  $0 
Narrative:  This is for the application of funds, not for expenditure of 

funds at this time.   
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 
 

1. Approve the Resolution – Approving the Resolution would allow the City to 
receive funding for this project. 

2. Deny the Resolution – Denying the resolution would cause the City to forgo 
their formula allocation for Fiscal Year 2013. 

3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The City will receive grant agreements later this fall and will work to implement 
the program throughout 2013.  The community complete all projects by 
December 31, 2013. 



 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends that the City Commission approve the resolution.   

ATTACHMENTS   

 



                                       RESOLUTION NO.  R-98-13 
 

                      A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT TO PERMIT 

             THE USAGE OF A PORTION OF FOUNTAIN PARK, 
HARDMAN FIELD AND HANCE PAVILION TO  
THE PIQUA FOURTH OF JULY ASSOCIATION 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to permit the Piqua 
Fourth of July Association on July 4, 2013 to use Hance Pavilion, Hardman Field, the 
Fountain Park volleyball courts and that part of Fountain Park between (and 
including) the hardball diamond and the dining hall, upon the condition that the Piqua 
Fourth of July Association obtains liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager 
at a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 and complies with the terms of the attached 
Lease.  The rental fee for this lease shall be $1.00 and other valuable consideration. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 











                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-99-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO THE LPA FEDERAL 
LOCAL-LET PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH THE 

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
(ODOT) FOR THE SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 

(SRTS) INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 
 

 WHEREAS, the National Transportation Act has made available certain 
Federal funding for use by local public agencies; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has been awarded a portion of this funding 
through the Ohio Department of Transportation for the infrastructure improvement 
projects throughout the City of Piqua as a part of the Safe Routes to School Program; 
and      
 

WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) designated ODOT 
as the agency in Ohio to administer FHWA’s Federal funding programs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua and ODOT desire to enter into a Local Let 

Project Agreement regarding the MIA-SRTS Piqua Infrastructure, PID 93747 Project; 
substantially in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto;  

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution supersedes Resolution R-19-13 passed on 

February 5, 2013, due to a change in the management scope of the project from 
ODOT Let to Local Let.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that:  

 
SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the MIA-

SRTS Piqua Infrastructure LPA Federal Local-Let Project Agreement substantially in 
the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and all documents, instruments and 
agreements contemplated thereby and to execute such amendments to the MIA-
SRTS Piqua Infrastructure LPA Federal Local-Let Project Agreement from time to 
time as contemplated by such Agreement. 

 
SEC 2:   This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 9
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
June 18, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into the LPA Federal Local-
Let Project Agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for 
the Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Infrastructure projects. 

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

In May of 2012, the City was notified of our award of a Safe Routes to School 
(SRTS) grant for the construction of infrastructure projects.  The projects will 
consist of infrastructure improvements around the Piqua Junior High School 
site, Washington Intermediate School site, and the Wilder Intermediate School 
site.  Some of the improvements will consist of the installation of new pavement 
markings and signage, the installation of ADA compliant curb ramps, the 
replacement of damaged sidewalk & curbs, and the construction of a multi-use 
path to the Junior High School from Looney Road, in addition to various other 
miscellaneous projects.   

A resolution was brought before City Commission in February of 2012 to enter 
into an agreement with ODOT for this project to be programmed as an ODOT 
Let project.  Since that time, the City has decided to take on this project as a 
Local Let project which means the City will be responsible for the plan reviews, 
the bidding, and the construction administration.  This new legislation reflects 
the change in project designation to a Local Let project.      

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  N/A for this Legislation 

Expenditure $:  N/A for this Legislation 
Source of Funds:  

Narrative  The total cost for the project is estimated to be $500,000.  
ODOT will provide to the City 100% of the eligible costs, 
up to a maximum of $500,000 in Federal funds.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with ODOT.   

2. Deny the resolution and do not proceed with the project. 



 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
The project design will begin this summer with construction scheduled for the 
spring of 2015.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the resolution to allow for the City to enter into an agreement with 
ODOT for the SRTS Infrastructure projects.   

ATTACHMENTS  LPA Federal Local-Let Project Agreement (Exhibit A) 

 

































RESOLUTION NO.  R-100-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A 
CONTRACT TO CHRISTY 
CONSTRUCTION FOR THE 2013 
SIDEWALK ADA COMPLIANCE 
PROGRAM 

 
 

 WHEREAS, on January 15, 2013, this Commission passed Resolution No. 
R-6-13 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for the 2013 Sidewalk ADA Compliance Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 

tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit A attached hereto;   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 

 
SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with Christy Construction as the 

lowest, responsible bidder for the 2013 Sidewalk ADA Compliance Program and the 
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder pursuant to 
contract specifications.  

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 

hereby authorized to draw her warrant from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$46,100. 

 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 10
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
June 18, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Christy Construction for the 2013 Sidewalk 
ADA Compliance Program. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy L. Havenar, City Engineer 
Department:  Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
On June 7, 2013, three bids were received for the 2013 Sidewalk ADA 
Compliance Program (see attached Exhibit A).  In general, the work will consist 
of the installation of concrete curbing, sidewalk, and truncated dome pavers at 
radii and other miscellaneous locations along the streets to be resurfaced as a 
part of the 2013 Street Resurfacing Program.    
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $46,000  
Expenditure $:  $46,100 (includes 10% contingency) 
Source of Funds: Street Income Tax (103 Fund) 
Narrative:  This resolution includes a 10% contingency for items of 

work which may be required which are not included in 
the original plans and specifications.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution and complete our 2013 Sidewalk ADA Compliance 
Program. 

2. Do not approve the resolution and do not complete any handicap ramp 
installation and ultimately, do not complete the 2013 Street Resurfacing 
Program.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
All of the work is anticipated to be complete within 45 day after issuing the 
Notice to Proceed.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the resolution to allow the completion of the 2013 Sidewalk ADA 
Compliance Program 

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation (Exhibit A) 

 



EX
H

IB
IT

 A

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
PI

Q
U

A
SI

D
EW

AL
K

 A
D

A
 C

O
M

PL
IA

N
C

E
B

ID
 T

AB
U

LA
TI

O
N

G
en

er
al

 In
fo

N
um

be
r:

13
-0

9
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n:

D
ea

dl
in

e:
6/

7/
20

13
En

gi
ne

er
's

 E
st

im
at

e:
$4

5,
50

0

Pr
op

os
al

 P
ag

e 
- 

Ite
m

 L
is

t

Ite
m

 N
um

be
r

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Q
ua

nt
ity

U
ni

ts
Fi

xe
d 

Pr
ic

e
U

ni
t T

ot
al

Ex
te

ns
io

n
U

ni
t T

ot
al

Ex
te

ns
io

n
U

ni
t P

ric
e

Ex
te

ns
io

n
1

C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 W

A
LK

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
25

01
.0

00
0

S
.F

.
no

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

50
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

2
C

U
R

B
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

, C
IT

Y 
O

F 
P

IQ
U

A
 T

YP
E

 1
26

7.
00

00
L.

F.
no

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

13
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

06
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

33
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

3
C

U
R

B
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

, T
YP

E
 6

25
3.

80
00

L.
F.

no
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
03

0.
40

$ 
   

   
   

  
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
01

5.
20

$ 
   

   
   

  
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
26

9.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
4

C
U

R
B

 &
 G

U
TT

E
R

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
20

.8
00

0
L.

F.
no

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

6.
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
83

.2
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5

6"
 C

O
N

C
R

E
TE

 W
A

LK
, A

S
 P

E
R

 P
LA

N
25

01
.0

00
0

S
.F

.
no

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

50
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

4.
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,2
54

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

5.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

,1
30

.2
5

$ 
   

   
   

6
C

A
S

T 
IR

O
N

 C
U

R
B

 R
A

M
P

 W
/ T

R
U

N
C

A
TE

D
 D

O
M

E
S

, A
S4

6.
00

00
E

A
C

H
no

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8,

28
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

32
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
14

,9
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

83
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
38

,1
80

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

7
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

P
IQ

U
A

 T
YP

E
 1

 C
U

R
B

26
7.

00
00

L.
F.

no
19

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

07
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
34

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
22

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

87
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

8
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

P
IQ

U
A

 T
YP

E
 6

 C
U

R
B

25
3.

80
00

L.
F.

no
19

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

82
2.

20
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
07

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
22

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

58
3.

60
$ 

   
   

   
  

9
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

P
IQ

U
A

 T
YP

E
 2

 C
U

R
B

 &
 G

U
TT

E
R

20
.8

00
0

L.
F.

no
19

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

5.
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

20
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

41
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
22

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

7.
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

10
TR

A
FF

IC
 C

O
N

TR
O

L
1.

00
00

LU
M

P
no

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
4,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
30

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

30
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

4,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
4,

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l:
41

,9
09

.2
0

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l:
43

,0
03

.9
0

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l:
73

,0
34

.4
5

$ 
   

   
   

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
P

IQ
U

A
 - 

S
ID

E
W

A
LK

 A
D

A
 C

O
M

P
LI

A
N

C
E

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

 
In

 g
en

er
al

, t
he

 W
or

k 
co

ns
is

ts
 o

f t
he

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 c

on
cr

et
e 

cu
rb

in
g,

 s
id

ew
al

k,
 a

nd
 tr

un
ca

te
d 

do
m

e 
pa

ve
rs

 a
t r

ad
ii 

an
d 

ot
he

r m
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

st
re

et
s 

to
 b

e 
re

su
rfa

ce
d.

  

L.
J.

 D
eW

ee
se

 C
o.

, I
nc

.
G

ris
so

m
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 L
LC

C
hr

is
ty

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n




